
 

Waverley Borough Council 
Council Offices, The Burys,  
Godalming, Surrey 
GU7 1HR 
www.waverley.gov.uk 
 

 

  

  

Page 1 
 

 
To: All Members of the EXECUTIVE 

 

When calling please ask for: 

Louise Fleming, Democratic Services & 
Business Support Team Manager 

Policy and Governance   

E-mail: louise.fleming@waverley.gov.uk 

Direct line: 01483 523517 

Calls may be recorded for training or monitoring 

Date: 25 February 2022 

 
Membership of the Executive 

 
Cllr Paul Follows (Chairman) 
Cllr Peter Clark (Vice Chairman) 
Cllr Andy MacLeod 
Cllr Penny Marriott 
Cllr Mark Merryweather 
 

Cllr Kika Mirylees 
Cllr Nick Palmer 
Cllr Paul Rivers 
Cllr Liz Townsend 
Cllr Steve Williams 
 

 
Dear Councillors 
 
A meeting of the EXECUTIVE will be held as follows:  
 

DATE: TUESDAY, 8 MARCH 2022 

TIME: 6.00 PM 

PLACE: COUNCIL CHAMBER, COUNCIL OFFICES, THE BURYS, 

GODALMING 

 
The Agenda for the Meeting is set out below. 
 
Yours sincerely  
 
ROBIN TAYLOR 
Head of Policy and Governance 
 

Agendas are available to download from Waverley’s website 
(www.waverley.gov.uk/committees), where you can also subscribe to 
updates to receive information via email regarding arrangements for 

particular committee meetings.  
 

Alternatively, agendas may be downloaded to a mobile device via the free 
Modern.Gov app, available for iPad, Android, Windows and Kindle Fire. 

http://www.waverley.gov.uk/committees


Page 2 
 

 
Most of our publications can be provided in alternative formats. For an 

audio version, large print, text only or a translated copy of this publication, 
please contact committees@waverley.gov.uk or call 01483 523351. 

 
Please note that due to current Covid restrictions, seating in the public gallery is 
extremely limited. The meeting can be viewed remotely via Waverley Borough 
Council’s YouTube channel or by visiting www.waverley.gov.uk/webcast .  

 
 

NOTES FOR MEMBERS 
 

Contact Officers are shown at the end of each report and members are welcome to raise 
questions, make observations etc. in advance of the meeting with the appropriate 
officer.   
 
Prior to the commencement of the meeting, the Leader, Deputy Leader or an 
appropriate Portfolio Holder to respond to any informal questions from members 
of the public, for a maximum of 15 minutes. 
 
[Questions will be taken in the order in which questioners register with the Democratic 
Services Officer prior to the start of question time. When read out, each question must 
be concluded within 2 minutes. In the event that it is not possible to give a verbal 
response, a written response will be provided following the meeting.] 
 

AGENDA 
 
1.  APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE   
  
 To receive apologies for absence. 

 
2.  MINUTES   
  
 To confirm the Minutes of the Meeting held on 8 February 2022. 

 
3.  DECLARATIONS OF INTERESTS   
  
 To receive from members, declarations of interest in relation to any items 

included on the agenda for this meeting, in accordance with the Waverley 
Code of Local Government Conduct. 
 

4.  QUESTIONS FROM MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC   
  
 The Chairman to respond to any questions received from members of the 

public for which notice has been given in accordance with Procedure Rule 10. 
 
The deadline for receipt of questions is 5.00pm on Tuesday 1 March 2022. 
 

5.  QUESTIONS FROM MEMBERS OF THE COUNCIL   
  
 The Chairman to respond to any questions received from Members in 

mailto:committees@waverley.gov.uk
https://www.youtube.com/user/WaverleyBorough
http://www.waverley.gov.uk/webcast


Page 3 
 

accordance with Procedure Rule 11.  
 
The deadline for receipt of questions is 5.00pm on Tuesday 1 March 2022. 
 

6.  LEADER'S AND PORTFOLIO HOLDERS' UPDATES   
  
7.  FAIRGROUND CAR PARK DEVELOPMENT PROJECT  (Pages 5 - 8) 
 [Portfolio Holder: Councillor Mark Merryweather] 
  
 This report seeks to inform the Executive of the proposal to redevelop the 

Fairground Car Park site in Haslemere and the high-level timeline to take the 
project forward. 
 
Recommendation 
 
It is recommended that a budget of up to £50,000 be approved to be met 
from the Property Investment Reserve to progress due diligence, 
including title reports, contamination assessment and external 
professional assistance with tender specification and evaluation. 
 

8.  EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC   
  
 To consider the following recommendation on the motion of the Chairman:- 

  

Recommendation 
  

That, pursuant to Procedure Rule 20, and in accordance with Section 100A(4) 
of the Local Government Act 1972, the press and public be excluded from the 
meeting during consideration of the following item(s) on the grounds that it is 
likely, in view of the nature of the business to be transacted or the nature of the 
proceedings, that if members of the public were present during these items, 
there would be disclosure to them of exempt information (as defined by Section 
100I of the Act) of the description specified at the meeting in the revised Part 1 
of Schedule 12A to the Local Government Act 1972. 
  
 

9.  THE PUMP HOUSE, KIMBERS LANE, FARNHAM - ENVIRONMENTAL 
REPORT  (Pages 9 - 14) 

 [Portfolio Holder: Councillor Mark Merryweather] 
  
 Recommendation 

 
To approve the recommendations as set out in the exempt report. 
 

10.  BRIGHTWELLS YARD, FARNHAM - UPDATE  (Pages 15 - 22) 
 [Portfolio Holder: Councillor Andy MacLeod] 
  
 Recommendation 

 
To agree the recommendations as set out in the exempt report. 
 

11.  ANY OTHER ISSUES TO BE CONSIDERED IN EXEMPT SESSION   
  



Page 4 
 

 To consider matters (if any) relating to aspects of any reports on this agenda 
which, it is felt, may need to be considered in Exempt session. 

  
 

 

    
  For further information or assistance, please telephone  

Louise Fleming, Democratic Services & Business Support Team 
Manager, on 01483 523517 or by email at 

louise.fleming@waverley.gov.uk 

 

    

 



WAVERLEY BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

EXECUTIVE 
 

8 MARCH 2022 

 
Title:  

Fairground Car Park Development Project 

 

 
Portfolio Holder: Cllr Mark Merryweather, Portfolio Holder for Finance, Assets and 

Commercial Services 
 
Head of Service: Peter Vickers, Head of Finance and Property 
 
Key decision: No 
 
Access:  Public 
: 

 
 
1. Purpose and summary 
 
1.1 This report seeks to inform the Executive of the proposal to redevelop the 

Fairground Car Park site in Haslemere and the high-level timeline to take the 
project forward. 

 
2. Recommendation 
 

It is recommended that a budget of up to £50,000 be approved to be met from the 
Property Investment Reserve to progress due diligence, including title reports, 
contamination assessment and external professional assistance with tender 
specification and evaluation. 

 
3. Reason for the recommendation 
 
 
3.1. The Fairground Wey Hill site has been identified as an opportunity for development 

of a council owned asset under the Asset Investment Strategy, in support of the 
corporate priorities. The site is currently a free unmade car park in the centre of 
Haslemere and is used by local shoppers and commuters. The draft local Plan part 
2 (LPP2) designates the site as brownfield, to yield at least 20 dwellings, as a 
mixed-use development and identifies the need to retain parking spaces where 
possible. 

 
3.2. Initial consultation was done in September 2021 with a site visit attended by Ward 

Members, officers and supported by HLM Architects. Progression of the 
development plans for the site will include further consultation with Haslemere 
Town Council and the Haslemere Hub to ensure it is appropriately accommodated 
within the development plans.  
 

Page 5

Agenda Item 7



3.3. An Option appraisal has been undertaken to assess the wider development 
potential of the site and specifically, the viability of a mixed used development 
scheme. This has demonstrated that a scheme is achievable, including at least the 
required LPP2 20 dwelling and retained car parking capacity. A Project Initiation 
Document (PID) for the project has been drawn up to provide a governance 
framework to progress the project. 

 
3.4. The next stage of the project is to develop a tender specification incorporating the 

LPP2 and asset investment compliant criteria to seek bids from interested parties 
to acquire a long lease of the commercial, provide site development and delivery 
proposals (i.e. a development partner). The evaluation of the tender process will 
inform the optimal scheme for the site and will determine the funding strategy. 
 

3.5. Timeline to date: 
 

  

December 2020 An Alternative Use Appraisal was completed as a high-level 
assessment of the development potential of the site, 
concluding that a mixed-use scheme on the site is viable. 

September 2021 A contingent of Members and Officers walked several sites 
in Haslemere to understand the opportunities and 
constraints of the sites 

December 2021 Local Plan Part 2 – Addendum for Haslemere 
Fairground Car Park site allocated 20 dwellings as part of a 
mixed-use development and retention of car parking. 

January 2022 Meeting with Planners to understand options/constraints of 
site from a planning perspective  

February 2022 Project Initiation Document developed to detail the 
objectives of the project. 

 A detailed appraisal completed incorporating the LLP2 
requirements. 

March 2022 Inform Executive of project progress to date and proposals 
on how the project will be taken forward. 

 Work with the Haslemere Hub on reprovision of facilities 
provided in the Wey Centre - either onsite or at an 
alternative suitable location 

March/April 2022 Determine appropriate tender route and develop tender 
specification documentation. Consult with stakeholders prior 
to agreeing tender specification. 

May 2022 Tender for development partner.  Likely six-week tender 
period. 

June/July 2022 Evaluate tender returns 

July/August 2022 Bring outcome of tender process back to Executive. 

 
3.6. The outcome of the tender process will be brought back to Executive to agree the 

next steps as appropriate. 
 
 
 
4. Relationship to the Corporate Strategy and Service Plan 
 

Page 6



4.1. Asset management in the Public Sector is about delivering public and community 
benefits such as regeneration of local economies and new housing as well as 
supporting the corporate priorities. 

 
4.2. Development of the site aligns directly with several the corporate strategy 

priorities, namely, affordable housing and economic regeneration.  It also aligns to 
the Government guidelines around ‘Investment for Service Purposes’ being 
expenditure on assets that form part of the Council’s public service which also 
support the corporate priorities. 

 
4.3. Under the Local Plan Part 2 the site has been allocated for 20 dwellings as part of 

a mixed used development.  Therefore, the scheme for the site will focus mixed 
use housing and supermarket provision in support of the Local Plan Part 2 as 
supported by service and planning demand.  It should be noted that it is likely the 
scheme can achieve more than the numbers allocated in the Local Plan. 

 
 
5. Implications of decision 
 
5.1 Resource (Finance, procurement, staffing, IT)  

To assess the development opportunity, initial due diligence is required to assess 
contamination and obtain land title reports.  External professional advice will be 
sought to assist with the tender specification and evaluation. Therefore, a budget 
of up to £50,000 is sought, to be met from the Property Investment Reserve. 
 
The funding of the development will be assessed as part of the outcome of the 
development proposal and will be brought back to Executive at the appropriate 
time. 

 
5.2 Risk management 
 

Risk will be managed in line with the requirements in the Asset Investment Strategy 
through the governance framework and robust due diligence. 
 
Options appraisals have been undertaken by external property advisors to assess 
the viability of the site. 

 
As with all spend on Council owned assets the risks associated with the investment 
spend will be mitigated through careful scheme design and financial analysis in 
considering risk and return and the Council’s financial capacity to absorb losses 
without unmanageable detriment to local services, this will include appropriate 
decision gateways. 

  
5.3 Legal 
 There are no direct legal implications arising out of this report, but the project will 

require direct legal support and advice in relating to any development proposals. 
 
5.4 Equality, diversity, and inclusion 

Equality impact assessments are carried out when necessary, across the council 
to ensure service delivery meets the requirements of the Public Sector Equality 
Duty under the Equality Act 2010. 
 

Page 7



5.5 Climate emergency declaration 
There are no direct climate emergency declaration implications in this report.  
However, the council’s environmental and sustainability objectives will be 
considered in the development specification. 

 
6. Consultation and engagement 
 
6.1 This proposal has been to the Property Investment Advisory Board on the 

16 December 2021 as part of the wider Wey Hill Development PID. 
 

 
7. Other options considered 
 
7.1 This investment gives the Council an opportunity to invest in the Borough in support 

of the corporate priorities.  The alternative options are to do nothing, a housing only 
development, make the car park and charge or sell the land for development. 
These alternatives do not support the LPP2 designation for mixed use 
development.  

 
 
8. Governance journey 
 
8.1 This proposal has been to the Property Investment Advisory Board on the 

16 December 2021 and Executive Briefing on the 22 February 2022. 
 
 

 

 
Background Papers 
 
There are / are no background papers, as defined by Section 100D(5) of the Local 
Government Act 1972).  

 
CONTACT OFFICER: 
Name:  Vicki Basley  
Position: Corporate Asset Manager 
Telephone: 0148 3523250 
Email:  Victoria.basley@waverley.gov.uk 
 
Agreed and signed off by: 
Legal Services: 24 February 2022 
Head of Finance: 24/02/2022 
Strategic Director: date 
Portfolio Holder: date 

Page 8



Document is Restricted

Page 9

Agenda Item 9
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 15

Agenda Item 10
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	7 Fairground Car Park Development Project
	9 The Pump House, Kimbers Lane, Farnham - Environmental report
	10 Brightwells Yard, Farnham - Update

